
Page 1 of 10 

                                                 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                    
 
 

 
 
 

GREENHEAD COLLEGE CORPORATION 

Minutes of the Finance & Estates Committee 

Monday 24 March 2025, 4.30pm 
Held in Upper Greenhead House, Greenhead College 

Governors present: 
Chris Kneale; Connie Laing; John Holroyd (Chair); Mohammed 
Usman (via Teams, from 16.58); Richard Armstrong 

In attendance 
Lauren Metcalfe (DoFF); Sarah Walters (DoEO); 
Sharon Roper (Clerk)  

Apologies: Frankie Robinson; Mo Bunter; Stuart Taberner 

Governor attendance: 63% attendance 

  
 

AGENDA ITEM DISCUSSION ACTION 

 
1. Welcome and 
apologies 

 
JHO welcomed participants.  
Apologies as above. 
 

 
 

 
2. Declarations 
 

 
No declarations of pecuniary/prejudicial interest. 
 

 
 

 
3. F&E Minutes 
3/2/25  
 

 
3.1 Finance & Estates minutes 3/2/25, previously circulated. 
 
CLA asked about the attendance figure of 75% - the Clerk 
said this relates to governors only, she will amend the 
minutes to make this explicit. 
Subject to the amendment, minutes approved by 
Committee, signed by Chair, returned to Clerk for filing. 
 
3.2  Matters arising not covered on agenda, Action log   
document, previously circulated. 
1. (3/3/25 Min 8.11, Action 22) JHO asked if sustainability 
scope one and two comparison measurements have been 
added to the action log – they have, and RAR asked for this 
to be covered at the next meeting.  
2. (3/3/25 Min 4.1.19, Action 14) Improvements to the 
performance indicator. JHO asked if there are actions that 
can improve the indicator – LME confirmed there are no 
actions (except saving costs or increasing revenue) that will 
facilitate a quicker change from good to outstanding. 
3. (3/3/25 4.1.10) JHO said that this action has been missed 
from the action log: ‘depending on information brought to 

 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 10 

F&E on 24/3/25 will determine how the existing loans 
should be managed and then LME can check if extending 
the existing loans is an option’. LME gave an update, the 
loan rate is 2.3% and the interest rates on the deposit 
accounts is higher, so it is better to keep the money on 
deposit rather than repay the loan. 
JHO asked LME to monitor the rates. 
LME said that a balloon payment of £500,000 is due later in 
the year when most of the loan will be repaid. JHO said this 
will result in a big reduction in the cash figure. 
4. (3/3/25 Min 8.11, Action 22) Sustainability measurements 
RAR asked that Sustainability committee is referred to by its 
correct name of a working party and it reports into CLT, 
F&E has oversight of sustainability.  
This action is to remain open.  
 
F&E members approved closure of the actions: 
3-4-5-6-7-8-9-10-12-13-14-15-16-19-23-24-25-26-27 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
Clerk 

 
4. Finance  

 
In the meeting item 4 was taken after item 5.  
 
4.1 F&E committee members reviewed January 
management accounts and narrative, all previously 
circulated.  
 
LME summarised key points:   
1. February accounts will be shared with F&E members by 
28/3/25.  
2. Surplus at the end of January is £133,000, expected 
outturn is still a deficit.  
3. Cash outflow was approved at £500,000 but spending 
has risen to £2 million. The increase is due to the project to 
develop the central hub and a new library.   
4. £250,000 spend has fallen into this year (Cooksey 
remedial works over £100,000, Bursary Audit £100,000 and 
there was not a planned IT asset spend - £80,000 already 
spent this year). 
5. The deficit remains. The higher pay awards are mostly 
offset by the DfE grant amount; further information will be 
issued in May. 
6. The Bursary auditors attended A&R committee 17/3/25 to 
give feedback. Although GC received a clawback the 
auditors were complimentary on how Bursary has been 
improved and this started before their audit visit. There is 
likely to be a reaudit to ensure the correct processes have 
been implemented.  
7. In relation to the budget, the teaching staff variance is 
currently positive due to the new VP not starting his role 
until January 2025 and recruitment is always budgeted at .9 
but some recruitments over the summer were significantly 
lower than this.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME/Clerk 
to circulate 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 10 

Recent strikes also meant that staff were not paid if they 
were striking. The staff absence costs are high; overtime 
was added into the budget to offset this.  
The negative variance on premises pay relates to cleaning 
staff contract changes which were not notified to the finance 
department and 372 hours of overtime being offered to 
student cleaners.  
LME will work with the Recruitment Manager to ensure that 
Finance department are aware of any future changes.  
8. LME has reduced the utilities expected outturn figure due 
to savings made.  
9. JHO asked about £6.3 million payroll spend to January 
as opposed to £4.7 million last year, an increase of 30%. 
LME said there was significant recruitment, growth in the 
ALS department, the pay award and teacher pensions 
increased by 5%. LME is monitoring and mindful of the 
payroll costs.   
LME is conscious of the staffing KPI of 77%, SFCA ideally 
expect 71%. Growing the college and lagged funding 
creates some distortion. GC is naturally higher than some 
colleges because all the tutors are qualified teachers.  
10. RAR asked if costs across the college can be 
benchmarked to other colleges in the sixth form sector. 
LME will add benchmarking into the management accounts 
and track the split between teaching and support staff.  
11. JHO asked LME to share last year’s accounts and 
current management accounts with her contacts if they will 
share their accounts with us, so comparisons can be made 
against current data.  
12. CLA asked how far in advance is the organisation 
structure for the following year known – it’s based on 
student numbers and staffing to facilitate them. Pay awards 
are an unknown, the assumption is 3% for next year. ALS 
department depends on the needs of the incoming student 
cohort.  
13. LME met with Barclays, some of the bank balance will 
move into notice deposit accounts until it is used over the 
summer, and the remainder will go into a treasury account 
with rates starting from 3.63%.  
JHO asked when using Barclays savings options will start – 
it already has.  
LME will share the Barclays savings accounts information 
with F&E members.   
14. Projections to year end include the variance for cleaner 
hours with an offset of a new premises staff member not 
starting until after Easter.   
15. There is currently a surplus but there are large invoices 
due to be paid.  
16. The five-year forecast has been updated with the 3.78% 
increase in funding for 2025/26, this has reduced the deficit 
for next year, and the financial health rating will return to 
‘outstanding’ in 2026/27. 
17. JHO asked that the college is conscious of the cash 
balance and how it is monitored as the balance this year is 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 



Page 4 of 10 

reducing from £4.5 million to £2 million by December 2025. 
RAR asked if there is an assumption that the CIF bid will be 
successful – yes, the cash forecast does assume success, 
worst case scenario will be prioritisation of the work 
needed, the £400,000 allocated will be used to start the 
work and another CIF bid will be submitted.  
 
4.2 LME summarised Budget Assumptions 2025/26, 
previously circulated. 
1. DfE allocation is confirmed with 3.78% increase 
announced for 2025/26. 
2. Growth fund has a cap which means it only pays two-
thirds of what was previously expected, LME feels we will 
not qualify as student numbers are only growing by 100.  
3. The Pension Grant will continue.   
4. Capital Grant is likely to continue; more information is 
expected after the spending review. 
5. National Insurance increase starts in April; although this 
is funded there is no clarity about the amount and when this 
will be received.   
6. Lettings income is expected to be at a similar level; hiring 
out of the MUGA is a success. 
7. SEND budget will be increased; students enrolling with 
EHCP in place are expecting to increase which will impact 
staffing assumptions. 
8. Campus fees took a hit this year, a communication piece 
will be launched explaining what students get for their 
money. LME will be prudent and increase in line with 
expected student numbers.  
9. Bank interest will drop due to a reduced cash balance.  
10. Pay Award will be assumed at 3%; there will be 
recruitment of four additional teachers. 
11. Next year there is a saving on support staff with the 
pension contribution reducing by 1.5%. 
12. Non pay will remain at 3%. 
13. Insurances will increase by 5%.   
14. Water bills will increase by 30%, this is being reviewed 
to check best value. 
15. Gas will reduce with new rates from April 2025; 
Electricity is tied in until 2027. 
16. Exam fees will increase.  
17. Depreciation will increase as there will be more assets. 
18. LME will liaise with SWA and PDI around capital spend.  
19. Cash flow will be monitored in line with GC’s policies. 
F&E members were happy with the assumptions. 
 
4.3 Fixed Asset Register, previously circulated –  
F&E members noted the Fixed Asset Register– there were 
no questions or comments from members.  
 

 
5. Update on the 
Estate, Catering 
and Procurement  

 
In the meeting item 5 was taken after item 3  
 

 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 10 

5.1 F&E committee members reviewed the Estates report, 
previously circulated.  
SWA highlighted the following: 
1. Previously DfE confirmed 18/7/25 was a hard deadline 
for the new build handover but this been retracted. Every 
day work is stopped due to exams an extra day will be 
added to the deadline. DfE said this links back to the six-
week delay at the start of works when asbestos was found. 
MBR and SWA have a meeting with DfE on 28/3/25 to 
discuss this. SWA said it would be operationally 
catastrophic not to have the new building ready for the new 
academic year.  
RAR asked about DfE policy on the impact of education for 
young people.  
SWA has subsequently spoken to Mace and GT, and this 
discussion was more positive. The building is almost 
finished but they will be completing groundworks during the 
exam period which SWA has been pointing out to them for 
months.  
RAR said at the outset of the works it was agreed that 
building work impacting negatively on exams was 
unacceptable to GC and DfE and he is happy to escalate to 
government ministers.  
SWA said they are agreeing to cessation of works requests, 
but the timeline will extend because stopping the build is not 
built into the timeline.  
SWA has asked for a point of escalation within DfE if the 
meeting about the handover is unsuccessful.   
JHO asked if SWA wants additional support in the meeting 
if MBR is unable to attend – RAR volunteered to attend with 
SWA if necessary 
2. There is an issue with fire dampers in the sports hall 
which are not to current building standards. This is on GC’s 
side of the build and GC has agreed to pay for 
replacements.  
The wall has holes which could be a potential risk, and a 
structural engineer has been called to check the walls. 
Options include not fitting any fire dampers, but this may 
impact fire risk, a fire consultant will have to check the 
walls.   
This is a current risk for GC.    
 
5.2 F&E committee members reviewed the Estates 
Developments presentation, previously circulated.  
SWA highlighted the following: 
 
1. Proposed capital investment works for summer 2025 are 
in response to the strategic growth of student numbers to 
2900. The plan is to efficiently use resource space to 
facilitate the growth without remodelling Hirst. There will be 
redistribution of the funds allocated to the Hirst remodel 
across college which will positively impact more students 
and enhance pastoral services.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 10 

2. Assuming the conversion rate holds, GC will hit 2900 
students in academic year 2025/26. 
3. The Asset Management plan will hit two budgets: 
2024/25 and 2025/26. 
4. RAR asked about the risk with the anticipated conversion 
rate which might result in more than 2900 students and the 
issues with the current planning restriction on student 
numbers. SWA said 2900 breaches the restriction and GC 
is currently in breach because staffing numbers are 
included in the planning restriction.  
In regard to lifting the planning restriction, the council 
planning department questioned why a Section 73 was not 
submitted, KNO believes the planning condition is unlawful, 
therefore a Section 73 is not required and is confident that it 
will be removed.  
GC have made enough offers to increase student numbers 
for 2025/26.  
SWA said there is a risk if the conversion rate increases but 
there is space for additional students.  
5. RAR asked if the capital funding at 3000 students applies 
to a Corporation as it does in academies, if not this is 
unlawful – LME will find out.  
6. JHO asked what the student population will be for 
2025/26 – it will be 2900.   
SWA wants the strategic student number that GC is aiming 
for to be confirmed to facilitate estate planning.  
RAR said there has been concern about congestion across 
the site – SWA said any further site developments will build 
in the flow across the site, be curriculum driven and 
consideration will be given to the quality of education and 
student experience.  
LME said GC must also be mindful of the population dip. 
RAR said more houses will be built in Kirklees, GC is 
oversubscribed, and after the 16-19 population rise, the 
population will return to current levels.   
CKN said there are pressures in high demand subjects like 
Biology, Chemistry, Maths, Psychology and Business.   
RAR said that student numbers and site development will 
be discussed at Strategy Day.  
7. SWA summarised the Estates Development Presentation 
which focuses on GC’s strategic priorities to help make the 
estate exceptional, utilise the estate efficiently and ensure it 
is fit for purpose for staff and students:   

• The ground floor of Dawson Block will be changed 
into a designated tutorial corridor.  

• A central hub will be created in the current library, 
this will include the Careers department and Careers 
library, Step Into office, tutor offices and workspaces, 
student study area, and confidential booths for 
privacy. IT services and student services will also be 
accessible from the central hub.  

• A study room will be created for students with 
sensory needs in the ALS corridor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk for 
agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 10 

• Offices on the ground floor of Conway block will be 
redistributed.  

• Business department have asked that their computer 
rooms be converted into classrooms. 

• The Library will move to the current G1 study room 
and will be a modern engaging space for students.  

8. RAR asked if the library will be like universities who offer 
electronic access to books – JRL is working on the digital 
strategy and SWA is supporting him with the impact in 
areas being redeveloped.  
RAR asked if the library could have less books with better 
use of the space for students – LME said the proposed 
plans do not have much space for books.     
RAR asked that a discussion takes place at Q&S regarding 
the library to support the introduction of digital progresses. 
CLA asked for student feedback data to support 
modernisation – SWA said there has not been a big 
response from students when asked for feedback.  
CKN said that GC used to sell textbooks to students, but 
this has reduced significantly.  
9. CLA asked when the estate developments will happen -
Summer 2025. 
10. JHO asked about staff feedback to the redevelopments 
– initially staff were largely receptive, but negativity is 
currently increasing.  
11. JHO asked for the total cost of the redevelopments – it 
is £1.1 million, which does not include Cooksey heating 
issues, and the CIF bid work. Estimated costs are included 
in the Asset Management Plan.  
12. IT has started to be added into the Asset Management 
Plan and needs allocating into academic years. JHO asked 
how long this will take – the 2025/26 IT allocation is 
required by Easter. 
In relation to IT strategy, the tutor hub will trial staff having a 
portable device with access to docking stations and this will 
be built into the project costs. 
13. JHO asked about ‘Revenue funding transferred to 
capital’ in the Funding Stream column in the Asset 
Management Plan – LME confirmed this is using the 
revenue budget (GC’s cash) which will be capitalised. 
14. JHO asked about the approval process for the individual 
elements of the redevelopments – this is confirmed in the 
Asset Management Plan.  
The amount approved for the Hirst remodel will be 
redirected to the proposed redevelopments – RAR said that 
the new plans will still achieve growth and asked for this to 
be formally approved by Corporation.  
RAR asked about growth in science subjects which are not 
supported by the redevelopment plan – SWA said growth in 
sciences has been facilitated by using Wednesday 
afternoon lessons.  
SWA said some approval is within director limits, some is at 
Principal level and some requires governor approval.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk for 
agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk for 
agenda 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 8 of 10 

The Clerk confirmed that in the Scheme of Delegation the 
Corporation Board approves expenditure over £156,442.  
LME said she has lower authorisation limits in the Finance 
Manual.  
F&E members agreed that the Clerk should update the 
Scheme of Delegation to match the Finance Manual.  
15. F&E members approved the £1.1 million development 
investment.  
16. SWA said that after the development in Summer 2025, 
further projects will need external capital investment, and 
she will work on different projects to ready them for when 
funding becomes available.  
17. Cooksey ventilation works have gone out to tender; the 
aim is to complete the works as soon as possible and staff 
have been updated.  
 
5.3 Highfields Preliminary Report –  
This is a confidential item. 
 
5.4 Estates Management Audit Report –  
This audit achieved significant assurance from the internal 
auditors and almost achieved the top rating. 
SWA thanked CRO and LLI for the implementation of the 
estates vision. 
 
5.5 GC Asset Management Plan –  
See 5.2. 
 
5.6 Catering update: 
OCS requested a payment for loss of profits on the snow 
days when GC didn’t open. They submitted a change 
request; GC rejected the change request and made a 
gesture of goodwill offer without prejudice for half the 
amount of the change request. The goodwill offer was 
accepted by OCS.   
SWA will continue to manage the contract – OCS have 
introduced new product lines, and the Free College Meal 
allowance has been increased.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6. Risk Register 
 

 
The New Build Risk Register and Summary were 
considered by committee members, previously circulated. 
 
- Catering was covered in the estates update. 
- Groundworks are underway particularly in the South 
Courtyard, the health and safety risk has been managed 
effectively.  
- Power down at half term was successful and the premises 
team are managing another power down during the 
weekend of 29/3/25.  
- (E9 - Personal Injury Claims from College stakeholders 
following accidents resulting in reputational and financial 
damage) RAR asked about two injury claims that are 
ongoing.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 9 of 10 

One claim is with the solicitors; liability has been accepted 
but the amount claimed is being further investigated.     
The other claim related to a door that had been vandalised 
which fell on a staff member. Safety screws were not fitted 
to the door. The insurers and GT are currently discussing 
liability.  
 

 
7. Policies to 
review 
 

 
7.1 Financial Management Policy – 
 
This policy replaces the Financial Procedures and 
Regulations. The Financial Management Policy has a 
strategic overview and there is an accompanying user-
friendly manual which will be shared with staff.  
JHO asked for the policy to be changed – it says that F&E 
committee meet six times per year, this schedule is 
reducing.  
‘All staff are responsible for the security of property avoiding 
loss or damage’, JHO asked where this is documented for 
staff to make it enforceable – it will be built into the staff 
handbook.  
‘Monthly management accounts will be prepared on an 
accruals basis and will be completed and reviewed by 25th of 
the following month’, JHO asked if this was achievable. LME 
said it will be with a new accounting system, but she will 
change the policy to say the management accounts will be 
reviewed by the end of the month.  
JHO asked if a new accounting system is included in the 
capital expenditure – it will be added to the budget and will 
be higher than LME initially anticipated.  
JHO asked about journal processing – LME confirmed she 
checks a sample of journals, bank reconciliations and asset 
registers, and there is evidence of the checks.  
JHO asked for an amendment: the budget will be approved 
at July Corporation meeting not June. This will be changed 
to the final Corporation meeting of the academic year.  
JHO asked if departmental quarterly reports of actual 
expenditure against budget does happen – it does.  
JHO asked if the sign off limits agree to the limits set by DfE 
– they are lower than the DfE recommendations.  
RAR said the sign off limits do not match the Scheme of 
Delegation – this will be updated.  
RAR asked if the Financial Management Policy reflects the 
Managing Public Money regulations – it does.  
CLA asked if petty cash is required and used – a minimal 
amount is held and this is currently necessary.   
 
F&E members approved the Financial Management Policy 
subject to the requested amendments.  
 
7.2 Reserves Policy – 
The recommendations from the internal auditors have been 
added into the policy.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
LME 
 
 
 
 
 
Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 10 of 10 

When LME reviews the Treasury Management Policy, the 
Reserves Policy will be merged into it to make one overall 
policy.   

‘College will be expected to make future provisions of a 
minimum of 1% to build future reserves and consider 
any amounts that may be required to facilitate expected 
estates redevelopments’, JHO asked 1% of what – LME 
will add further detail to this policy, and it will be added 
to the F&E agenda 6/5/25.   

 
LME 
 
 
 
 
LME/clerk 
for agenda 

 
8. Any other 
business 

 
1.RAR asked LME to explore the £180 million government 
sustainability funding process.   
2. EWY has approached RAR and asked for an A&R 
member to be invited to join F&E committee, MBO has 
agreed to join F&E from September 2025. F&E members 
approved MBO joining the committee. 
3. JHO asked about the potential disruption when the new 
accounting system is installed – LME acknowledged there 
could be disruption and added that the new system will 
include HR and Payroll functions too.  

 
 
LME 

 
9. Confidentiality 

 
Highfields. 
Library discussions 

 

 
10. Date next mtg 
 

 
Next F&E; Tuesday 6 May 25, 4.30pm, at College  
 

 
 
 

 
 
Minutes prepared by Sharon Roper (Clerk to the Corporation) on 22/4/25 
 
Approved & signed by Chair, John Holroyd on 6/5/25 


